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MEMORANDUM

JAMES KNOLL GARDNER,
United States District Judge

This matter is before the court on the Mtion and
Menor andum for Bail Pendi ng Appeal, which notion and nenorandum
were filed on behal f of defendant Joel Tyson on Cctober 8, 2007.1
On Cctober 17, 2007 the Governnent’s Response to Defendant’s
Motion for Bail Pending Appeal was filed. On Novenmber 7, 2007 |

conducted a hearing on defendant’s notion. For the reasons set

forth below, | deny the notion.
! On Cctober 12, 2007 defendant filed the same notion and nmenorandum
a second time. Because both filings are exactly the same, | consider them

both one notion and nmenor andum



FACTS

Based on the evidence proffered? by the parties at the
heari ng conducted before ne on Novenber 7, 2007 and the facts
adduced at the pretrial suppression hearing conducted before ne
on August 23, 2007, | find the pertinent facts to be as foll ows.

On April 17, 2007 a federal Grand Jury returned an
| ndi ct ment char gi ng def endant Joel Tyson with one count of
convicted felon in possession of a weapon in violation of
18 U.S.C. 8§ 922(9)(1).

This charge stemmed from an incident occurring on
February 25, 2007. On that date, at 3:15 a.m, Sergeant M chael
Kalin of the City of Reading, Pennsylvania Police Departnment was
in a marked police vehicle parked on the 200 bl ock of North 3'd
Street inthe City of Reading with his driver’s side w ndow open.
Sergeant Kalin was surveilling the George Washi ngton Carver Post
which is a known “after hours” private club where police are
regul arly dispatched for problens when the club closes including
physi cal fights, gun shots, shootings, stabbings and noi se.

As Sergeant Kalin was preparing to | eave his |ocation

because nost of the patrons had |left the bar, he heard between 20

2 The Bail Reform Act of 1984 provides that at a bail hearing,
def endant “shall be afforded an opportunity to testify, to present w tnesses
on his own behalf, to cross-exam ne w tnesses who appear at the hearing, and
to present information by proffer or otherwise.” 18 U.S.C. § 3142(f) (enphasis
added) .

The parties did not call w tnesses but, by agreenent, both parties
presented their cases at the hearing by proffer.
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and 30 gunshots in rapid succession comng froma |ocation
approxi mately one bl ock away. It appeared to Sergeant Kalin that
the shots canme fromnorth of his position around El m Street.
Sergeant Kalin radi oed police headquarters that he heard gun

shot s.

Sergeant Kalin drove North on 3¢ street to Elm Street
and turned east on Elm Street. Just before he got to Rose
Street, Sergeant Kalin observed an elderly man with no shirt on
wearing sandal s. Because it was cold out, Sergeant Kalin believed
the man had just cone outside froma nearby house. Sergeant
Kalin asked the unidentified man where the shots cane from The
man pointed in a Northeast direction toward Rose Street and said,
“Down there; down there.”

Sergeant Kalin then drove to the 300 Bl ock of Rose
Street, which intersects the mddle of the 300 Bl ock of Elm
Street. Wien he arrived at the 300 Bl ock of Rose Street,
Sergeant Kalin saw two nicely-dressed H spani c mal es wal ki ng
South on the sidewal k of Rose Street. Sergeant Kalin asked these
two nmen about the shots; and one of them pointed backward,
further North down the same bl ock of Rose Street.

Sergeant Kalin | ooked down the bl ock and saw both an
Hi spanic and an African-Anmerican male standing further down the
bl ock near a group of parked cars. Sergeant Kalin drove to the

area where the cars were parked. Wen he arrived the Hi spanic



mal e, later identified as Em|io Reguero, was standing next to a
parked green Buick with tinted wi ndows. The African-Anerican
mal e, later identified as Justin Buchanon, was standi ng near by.

Sergeant Kalin ordered M. Reguero to show his hands.
M. Reguero allegedly ignored Sergeant Kalin and proceeded to
light a cigarette “very calmy”. Sergeant Kalin exited his
vehicle and determ ned that M. Reguero was the biggest possible
threat to his safety because M. Reguero ignored Sergeant Kalin's
command.

Sergeant Kalin drew his service revolver, pointed it at
M. Reguero and pushed M. Reguero face down on the hood of the
green Buick. Sergeant Kalin then observed that there were two
people in the front seat of the green Buick. Sergeant Kalin
handcuffed M. Reguero and pointed his service revolver at the
two individuals in the green Buick and directed both nen to put
t heir hands on the dashboard.

At this point, Oficers Christopher D nger and Hector
Santiago arrived on the scene and renoved the occupants of the
green Buick fromthe vehicle. Defendant Joel Tyson was in the
driver’s seat. M. Tyson explained that the car belonged to his
sister and that he was driving it because she was too drunk to
give hima ride. Franklin Caceras was the front seat passenger.
Both M. Tyson and M. Caceras were handcuffed and patted down

for weapons only. Oficers checked everyone for warrants. \Wen



it was determ ned that there were no outstanding warrants for
def endant Tyson his handcuffs were renoved.

Before permtting M. Tyson to get back into the Buick
and | eave, O ficer Dinger |ooked inside in the driver side of the
car and shined his flashlight to | ook for weapons. Wen
conducting this visual search, Oficer Di nger observed the hamrer
and back end of a handgun, | ater determined to be a Silver Ruger
Model P95DC, 9mm handgun, serial nunber 31225729, underneath M.
Tyson’ s driver side seat.

O ficer Dinger grabbed the gun and felt that the slide
section was hot to the touch, as if it had just been fired. In
addition, there was an extended hi gh capacity magazine fitted
into the handl e of the gun which Oficer Dinger estimted can
hold 20 to 30 rounds. The nmagazine was enpty. M. Tyson was
then arrested for convicted felon in possession of a firearm and
carrying a firearmw thout a |license.

A short time after defendant’s arrest, Oficer Keith
Merkel returned to the area of Elmand Rose Streets and recovered
28 brass Luger 9nmm casings fromthe street between 318 Elm Street
and the Northwest corner of Rose and Elm Streets. The casi ngs
were submtted to the United States Departnent of Justice, Bureau
of Al cohol, Tobacco, Firearns and Expl osives (“ATF") for
conparison to the Ruger recovered from M. Tyson's vehicle.

Laboratory anal ysis conducted by ATF reveal ed that the 28



cartridges recovered between 318 Elm Street and the Nort hwest
corner of Rose and Elm Streets were fired fromthe 9mm Ruger
recovered fromunder defendant’s seat in the green Buick

On July 20, 2007 Defendant’s Mtion and Menorandumto
Suppress Physical Evidence was filed seeking to suppress the gun
recovered by police on February 25, 2007 as the fruit of an
illegal search. On August 23, 2007 after hearing, and for the
reasons expressed sinmultaneously on the record at that tine, |
granted defendant’s notion to suppress the gun seized in this
case.

On Septenber 21, 2007 the governnent appeal ed ny O der
The governnent’s appeal of ny August 23, 2007 Order is currently
is pending before the United States Court of Appeals for the
Third Crcuit. In his wthin notion, defendant seeks bai
pendi ng the governnent’s appeal.

Def endant is also currently facing state charges in
Ber ks County, Pennsylvania for possession of a weapon. The facts
of the state crimnal case involve another shooting. |In that
case, defendant was with a friend on a sidewal k i n Readi ng when a
vehi cl e passed by and one of the occupants of the vehicle fired
shots toward M. Tyson and his friend. Defendant’s friend was
shot and kil l ed.

In addition, defendant allegedly possessed a weapon

that he used to fire shots back at the vehicle as it was | eaving



the scene of the homcide. This shooting incident preceded the
stop on February 25, 2007 which resulted in the within charge.
Defendant is being held on one mllion dollars bail in the Berks
County case.

Defendant is a lifelong resident of 859 Schuyl ki l
Avenue, Readi ng, Berks County, Pennsylvania. M. Tyson's
parents, Jean and Harold Tyson, own and reside at the Schuyl kil
Avenue residence. Defendant has a |imted enploynent history
with the only disclosed enpl oynent being an unspecified four-
month job with Quaker Maid Meats, Readi ng, Pennsyl vania just
prior to being arrested on the current charges.

Def endant has one sibling, Chantal Tyson, who al so
resides in Reading. Defendant has three children, aged 6, 3 and
11 nonths. Defendant’s two oldest children live with their
not her, Tiffany Landis, in WIlIlianmsport, Pennsylvani a.

Def endant’ s youngest child resides with his ex-girlfriend, Latoya
Opante, in Reading.

Def endant attended hi gh school until the el eventh grade
and later acquired his G E. D

Def endant has five prior crimnal convictions. Two of
def endants convictions are for drug-related crines. Two of
defendant’s convictions are firearns related. Defendant’'s fifth

conviction is for fleeing fromthe police.



On May 16, 2007 defendant waived a pretrial detention
hearing before United States Magi strate Judge Henry S. Perkin and
agreed to pretrial detention. Defendant now seeks bail on the
charge in this case.

DI SCUSSI ON

My review of a Magistrate Judge’ s pretrial detention

determnation is de novo. United States v. Del ker,

757 F.2d 1390, 1395 (3d Cr. 1985). However, because defendant
did not originally oppose pretrial detention on May 16, 2007 when
Magi strate Judge Henry S. Perkin issued a pretrial detention
Oder, this is the first formal review of defendant’s bail status
not wi t hst andi ng Magi strate Judge Perkin's O der.

The issue of bail for a defendant pending a governnent
appeal is addressed in 18 U S. C. 8§ 3143(c). Section 3143(c)
provides in pertinent part:

(c) Release or detention pending appeal by the
governnment.-The judicial officer shall treat a

defendant in a case in which an appeal has been taken
by the United States under section 3731% of this title,

8 Title 18, section 3731 of the United States Code governs appeal s
by the governnent in crimnal cases. Section 3731 states in pertinent part:

An appeal by the United States shall lie to a court of
appeal s froma decision or order of a district court
suppressi ng or excludi ng evidence...not nade after the
def endant has been put in jeopardy and before the verdict or
finding on an indictnment or information, if the United
states attorney certifies to the district court that the
appeal is not taken for purpose of delay and that the
evidence is a substantial proof of fact material in the
pr oceedi ng.

(Footnote 3 conti nued):




in accordance with section 3142 of this title, unless
t he defendant is otherw se subject to a rel ease or
detention order

18 U.S.C. § 3143(c). Thus, based upon the express |anguage of
8 3143(c) an exam nation of § 3142 is necessary.

The issue of pretrial detention is governed by the Bai
Reform Act, 18 U.S.C. 8 3142. The Act provides, in part:

|f, after a hearing pursuant to the

provi sions of subsection (f) of this section,
the judicial officer finds that no condition
or conbi nation of conditions will reasonably
assure the appearance of the person as
required and the safety of any other person
and the community, such judicial officer
shal |l order the detention of the person
before trial

18 U.S.C. § 3142(e).
Accordingly, | nust review the factors enunerated in

18 U.S.C. § 3142(g) to determ ne whet her defendant is eligible
for rel ease on bail pending appeal. These factors include:

(1) the nature and circunstances of the

of fense charged, including whether the

offense is a crime of violence, a Federal

crime of terrorism or involves a mnor

victimor a controlled substance, firearm
expl osive, or destructive device;

(Continuation of footnote 3):

As noted above, on August 23, 2007 after hearing, | granted
defendant’s notion to suppress the gun seized in this case. On Septenber 21
2007 the governnent appeal ed the August 23, 2007 Order granting defendant’s
notion to suppress. In its Notice of Appeal, the government certified that
the appeal is not taken for purpose of delay and that the evidence is a
substantial proof of fact material in the proceeding. The government’'s appea
of my August 23, 2007 Order is currently is pending before the United States
Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit.

Thus, | treat the governnent’s appeal as one properly taken
pursuant to 8§ 3731.

-0-



(2) the weight of the evidence against the
per son;

(3) the history and characteristics of the
person, including—-

(A) the person’s character, physical and
mental condition, famly ties, enploynent,
financial resources, length of residence in
the community, conmmunity ties, past conduct,
history relating to drug or al cohol abuse,
crimnal history, and record concerning
appearance at court proceedi ngs; and

(B) whether, at the time of the current
of fense or arrest, the person was on
probation, on parole, or on other rel ease
pending trial, sentencing, appeal, or
conpl etion of sentence of an offense under
Federal, State, or local |aw and
(4) the nature and seriousness of the danger
to any person in the community that woul d be
posed by the person’s rel ease...

18 U.S.C. § 3142(9).

In applying the factors outlined above, as nore fully
di scussed below, | find that the statutory factors weigh heavily
in favor of detention, particularly the nature and circunstances
of the offense charged, the history and characteristics of
def endant and the nature and seriousness of the danger to any
person or the conmmunity that woul d be posed by defendant’s
rel ease.

The issue of the weight of the evidence at this tine is
a neutral factor. However, viewed in conjunction with all the
other factors, this factor is insufficient to outweigh the other

factors. Defendant’s ties to the community appear to be strong.
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This factor weighs in favor of pre-trial release. However, |
conclude that this factor alone is insufficient to outweigh the
ot her factors.

Regardi ng the nature and circunstances of the offense
charged, the governnent has charged defendant with the serious
crinme of possession of a weapon by a previously convicted felon.
Specifically, defendant is charged wth possessing a Silver Ruger
Model P95DC, 9mm handgun, serial nunber 31225729, which weapon
was found underneath M. Tyson’s driver side seat.

In addition, when found by the police, the slide
section of the gun was still hot, as if it had just been fired.
Furthernore, there was an extended high capacity magazine fitted
into the handl e of the gun which could hold as many as 20 to 30
rounds. Finally, 28 brass Luger 9nm casi ngs were recovered from
the street near where defendant was stopped by the police and
t hose casings appear to be fromthe 9mm Ruger found underneath
defendant’s car seat. Finally, this matter obviously involves a
firearm a factor specifically contenplated by Congress in
enacting subsection 3142(qg)(1).

Accordingly, | find that the nature and seriousness of
the offense weigh in favor of detention.

Next, regarding the weight of the evidence factor,
previ ously suppressed the weapon in this case because | concl uded

that the stop and search by the police was Constitutionally
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infirm Thus, at this tinme the weight of the governnent’s
evi dence is weak. However, if the governnent prevails in

overturning ny suppression decision, the governnent’s case
becones consi derably stronger.

Thus, because | cannot predict how the Third Grcuit
may deci de the governnent’s appeal, | conclude that this factor
is neutral on the issue of whether to grant defendant bai
pendi ng appeal .

Def endant has strong ties to the comunity. He is a
lifelong resident of 859 Schuyl kill Avenue, Reading,

Pennsyl vani a. Defendant has lived at the sane residence with his
parents for his entire life. Mreover, defendants only sibling
and one of his three children also live in the Cty of Reading.
Al'l these ties to the comunity weigh in favor of granting

def endant bail .

However, the United States Court of Appeals for the
Third Crcuit has found community ties to be “of Iimted weight”
in the context of a case where other factors weigh heavily in
favor of pretrial detention. Delker, 757 F.2d at 1396. Thus,
al though it appears that defendant has considerable ties to the
community, this factor does not outweigh the other factors in
favor of pre-trial detention.

Def endant has a limted enploynment history with the

only disclosed enpl oynent being a four-nmonth job with Quaker Mid
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Meats, Reading, Pennsylvania. This limted enploynment history
mtigates agai nst rel ease.

Def endant has five prior crimnal convictions. Two of
def endants convictions are for drug-related crinmes. Two of
defendant’s convictions are firearns related. Defendant’s fifth
conviction is for fleeing fromthe police. Accordingly,
defendant’s prior crimnal history involving drugs, guns and
escape, weigh in favor of detention

Finally, the strongest factor weighing in favor of pre-
trial detention is the danger to both defendant and the comunity
if the defendant were to be rel eased pendi ng appeal .

Def endant is facing state court charges in Berks
County, Pennsylvania for possession of a weapon. The facts of
the state crimnal case involve another shooting where a vehicle
passed by and one of the occupants of the vehicle fired shots
toward M. Tyson and his friend. Defendant’s friend was shot and
killed. Defendant allegedly fired back at the vehicle.

The facts of the within matter indicate that defendant
was all egedly in possession of a weapon with a high capacity
magazi ne that was fired in an urban area of the Cty of Reading.
The within incident took place after the previous shooting. This
i ndi cates that defendant may have the ability to acquire

addi tional weapons if released. |In addition, there is a chance
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t hat defendant may seek retribution for the shooting death of his
friend.

Thus, given the apparent proclivity of defendant to
fire weapons in popul ated urban areas, the fact that defendant
has al ready been the victimof a driveby shooting, where he fired
back at the perpetrators, and the fact that he may have access to
ot her weapons, | find these factors to strongly weigh in favor of
detention pendi ng appeal .

Concl usi on

For all the forgoing reasons, | find that defendant’s
prof fered evidence does not warrant rel ease pending appeal. In
particular, the neutral factor of the weight of the evidence and
defendant’s strong community ties do not outweigh the nature and
ci rcunst ances of the offense charged, the history and
characteristics of defendant and the nature and seriousness of
t he danger to any person or the community which woul d be posed by

def endant’ s rel ease.
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